OR TLANGOR IS ON THE CONTROL OF THE

CITY OF

PORTLAND, OREGON

OFFICIAL MINUTES

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTLAND, OREGON WAS HELD THIS **15TH DAY OF FEBRUARY**, **2006** AT 9:30 A.M.

THOSE PRESENT WERE: Commissioner Sten, Presiding; Commissioners Leonard and Saltzman, 3.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: Karla Moore-Love, Clerk of the Council; Harry Auerbach, Chief Deputy City Attorney; and Larry Sparks, Sergeant at Arms.

DUE TO THE ABSENCE OF TWO COUNCIL MEMBERS NO EMERGENCY ORDINANCES WERE CONSIDERED THIS WEEK AND ITEMS WERE NOT HEARD UNDER A CONSENT AGENDA		Disposition:
	COMMUNICATIONS	
171	Request of Bruce Broussard to address Council regarding school funding (Communication)	PLACED ON FILE
172	Request of Patricia Schaeffer to address Council regarding human, civil and women's rights (Communication)	PLACED ON FILE
173	Request of Watchman to address Council regarding chasing homeless off sidewalks (Communication)	PLACED ON FILE
174	Request of Jim Evans to address Council regarding city government must prioritize services (Communication)	PLACED ON FILE
175	Request of Ron Swaren to address Council regarding fair hiring during Portland's construction boom (Communication)	PLACED ON FILE
	TIME CERTAINS	
176	TIME CERTAIN: 9:30 AM – Approve the appointment of members to the Citizen Review Committee for Independent Police Review (Resolution introduced by Auditor Blackmer) (Y-3)	36377

	REGULAR AGENDA	
177	Statement of cash and investments December 15, 2005 through January 11, 2006 (Report; Treasurer) (Y-3)	PLACED ON FILE
178	Accept bid of Moore Excavation, Inc. for the Downtown Water Mains Improvement Project for \$7,982,190 (Purchasing Report - Bid No. 104745) (Y-3)	ACCEPTED PREPARE CONTRACT
	Mayor Tom Potter	
	Bureau of Planning	
179	Adopt and implement the Division Green Street/Main Street Plan (Second Reading Agenda 134; amend Comprehensive Plan and Title 33) (Y-3)	179925 as amended
	Office of Management and Finance – Bureau of General Services	
180	Amend contract with Hennebery Eddy Architects to provide architectural and engineering services for the renovation of Fire Station 23 and the Logistics Center (Ordinance; amend Contract No. 32659)	PASSED TO SECOND READING FEBRUARY 22, 2006 AT 9:30 AM
181	Authorize replacement of Oregon Department of Transportation agreement no. 20942 with agreement no. 22935 for Union Station Facility Improvements (Ordinance)	PASSED TO SECOND READING FEBRUARY 22, 2006 AT 9:30 AM
182	Authorize lease for parking space for the Bureau of Water Works Westinghouse Building & Fleet Garage Canopy Demolition project (Second Reading Agenda 161)	179926
	(Y-3)	
	Commissioner Sam Adams	
	Bureau of Environmental Services	
183	Authorize Intergovernmental Agreement with Northwest Service Academy to provide two Americorps placements to implement the community watershed stewardship program (Second Reading Agenda 146)	179927
	(Y-3)	
	Commissioner Randy Leonard	
184	Contribute \$150,000 to Metro for site improvements at the Morrison Building property at Lone Fir Cemetery (Second Reading Agenda 152) (Y-3)	179928
	Bureau of Emergency Communications	

185	Authorize Intergovernmental Agreement with Multnomah County to provide additional funds for Rescue Autumn's People Program (Second Reading Agenda 154)	179929
	(Y-3)	
	Water Bureau	
186	Accept the Hudson Road Intertie project by Moore Excavation, Inc. as complete for the total cost of \$4,051, 250 and authorize final payment (Report)	ACCEPTED
	(Y-3)	
	Commissioner Dan Saltzman	
	Parks and Recreation	
187	Authorize an Intergovernmental Agreement with Portland State University/Survey Research Laboratory for a survey of neighborhood park use in the amount of \$1,500 (Second Reading Agenda 155)	179930
	(Y-3)	

At 10:14 a.m., Council adjourned.

GARY BLACKMER Auditor of the City of Portland

By Karla Moore-Love Clerk of the Council

For a discussion of agenda items, please consult the following Closed Caption File.

WEDNESDAY, 2:00 PM, FEBRUARY 15, 2006

DUE TO LACK OF AN AGENDA THERE WAS NO MEETING

February 15, 2006 Closed Caption File of Portland City Council Meeting

This file was produced through the closed captioning process for the televised City Council broadcast. Key: **** means unidentified speaker.

FEBRUARY 15, 2006 9:30 AM

[Roll call]

Sten: The mayor is absent, so as council president i'll be running the meeting today. We'll start with communications. You'll each have three minutes. There's a little clock that's on the table there, keep an eye on that, and we'll start with 171.

Item 171.

Moore: He has rescheduled.

Sten: 172. Item 172.

Sten: Ms. Schaeffer.

Patricia Schaeffer: My name is patricia schaeffer. My rights in the united states as a u.s. Citizen has been violated. When a person is picked up and lies start, and the police take someone, whether it's in a mental institution or anywhere else, and lock them up, not nothing circumstances completely, and investigations aren't made thoroughly, this is what's happened to me. In salem, Oregon, put in a mental institution at the age of 15. A write-up was done when I was 15 years old in 1960, from then on they were doing horrible things in this mental institution. Putting restraints, the type of restraints around your arms and throwing them in a locked room, naked children, young kids at the age that were so mentally ill, naked in a room, where the only place you would put food is in a slot on a dirty mattress, no pillow. I did this, fed a young gal that was put so -- she was so mentally ill, I saw this happening in the state of salem, Oregon, in the mental institution in 1960, and crimes have continued to happen, and I went before a judge in roseburg, Oregon, and the police department throughout the state of Oregon, I don't care where it is, other people have said this too, that it happens every other place in the hospitals where -- what you call triage, they do wrong things to people, constantly. And i'm a witness to this, and i'm telling the truth. If I had to put a right hand up before a judge constantly, this has happened before. Where it's behind the scenes, and nobody knows about it. There's more write-ups in salem about this hospital. I don't care what anybody says. I was never mentally ill, but they put me in a situation where they were feeding me drugs that were dangerous to me, constantly throughout Oregon they're making wrong decisions, medical wrong -- wrongful decisions throughout the state of Oregon, and I have proof of this, of files, my files, and i'm so upset about this. This is how it's been violated, constantly feeding me pills that were dangerous. They didn't thoroughly look into the doctors that were doing this at all. And I have all my files, and i'm catching the lies. I'm very upset about this. And crimes have happened to me. Crimes. Horrible crimes.

Sten: Thank you.
Schaeffer: Deplorable.

Sten: 173. Item 173.

Watchman: Good morning, city council.

Sten: Good morning.

Watchman: I was going to address this to the missouri -- mayor, but I have it all written down. It pertains to everybody. Honorable mayor and city council, there's a rescue mission in san diego, california, that has been feeding the poor for years and years and years. Someone sued them and now they can't feed any more. It is not very good judgment on the part of either the lawyers or the

judges to allow this to happen. Now i'm going to talk about something that relates a little more closely to Portland, Oregon. I was brought before a judge in olympia, Washington, the lord wants me to repeat to you today what he gave me to say -- let me first go to deuteronomy chapter 15. It says how we should take care of the poor. I'm not going to go over the whole chapter, I don't have time. But it says we're supposed to open our hands to the poor and chase him off the street is the opposite of opening your hand wide to the poor. It also says that if you help the poor, you'll have good success. Ok. I was brought before a judge in olympia, Washington, lord wants me to repeat to you today what he gave me to say to that judge about 10 years ago. They had the same problem in olympia that we have in Portland. They were chasing the poor people off the streets. Now, that judge threw me in a mental hospital for what I said. I don't care, i'm not afraid of judges or mayors, i'm only afraid of god. Here's what I told the judge, and this is for mayor Potter. I guess he has the last say in what the police department does. The sidewalks belong to the poor. This is what god has to say. The sidewalks belong to the poor. They have nowhere else to go. They can sleep on the sidewalk and sit on the sidewalks, and you can't touch them. If you do, mayor Potter, I will lay hands on you. That is what I told the judge in olympia, and he threw me into the mental hospital. God has one more thing to say to you this morning. It is a quote out of the book of ezekiel, but it applies in this case. Skipping through the chapter 20 to verse 11, I gave them the people in the desert, my statutes and showed them my judgments which have -- he shall live by them. I've given you god's judgments this morning. Verse 21 goes on to say, notwithstanding the children rebelled against me. They walked not in my statutes and kept my judgments to do them, which if a man do, he shall even live in them. And they polluted my -- then I said I will pour out my fury on them to accomplish my anger against them in the wilderness.

Sten: Thank you. Your three minutes is up. **Watchman:** I have about five seconds more.

Sten: Perfect.

Watchman: The new testament, carry each others' burdens, and in this way you will fulfill the law of christ.

Sten: Thank you very much. 174, please.

Item 174.

Jim Evans: Jim evans is my name. Just wanted to talk a little bit this morning about prioritizing of services. We've seen over the last couple weeks a lot of things that have happened in terms of support for various issues, various projects that haven't quite gone the way we'd like to see them. I think what that suggests is that the city council needs to prioritize what it's going to do. And i'd like to talk really briefly about two examples. One is there seems to be some rumors going around, I don't know whether -- how strong it is, about the city doing a broad band project where they would spend a lot of money, I think the numbers floating around are half a billion dollars to put out a broad band program, more than a program, lines going all over the city. We have quest that has said they'll do that kind of stuff as the need arises. What kind of message does that send out to the citizens of Portland that the council is considering spending a half a billion dollars on a project where we've seen in ashland, Oregon, they've done essentially the same thing and they've ended up being \$14 million in the hole. That's a lot smaller city, probably a smaller expense. You can imagine that what might end up with the city of Portland on a half a billion dollar project when we got a private enterprise that says they're willing to do something like that as the need arises. I hope you guys take a look at that, decide not to do that. But if you do, it kind of says where the priorities are. City government can only do so many things. I would suggest to you it's better to do a few things very well than to try and do a whole bunch of things that really don't end up panning out. You've lost some support in the city for new taxes because of the examples that are out there in the city today. I think it's incumbent to be positive and in the time I have left, let's look at the homeless factor. What are we doing now? We're giving a small number of developers incentives, tax

incentives to put in homelesses in. What could we do instead? Rehabilitate the second stories of all these buildings around here that aren't being used that could be used, and that would spread out this tax towards more property owners. We'd have more shelter available for people, and we'd be rehabilitating current structures. I think that's a strategy that could be looked at as opposed to putting all our money into a few developers. I do want to say also thank you for being allowed to address council, because this is a valuable forum. Thank you.

Sten: Thank you, mr. Evans. Number 175.

Item 175.

Sten: Good morning.

Ron Swaren: My name is ron swaren, i'm a member of carpenters local 247. I've been in the industry nearly 30 years. And we've been through some really difficult economic times, as most Oregonians are aware, in the early 1980's was a particularly bad time. What i'm concerned about is that even in this construction boom that we're having now, a lot of times the hiring I believe is unfair. I participated quite extensively in the planning discussions for projects like the south waterfront. This week I have three different meetings that i'm going to or have gone to related to the transportation issues, especially in the south metro area. So i'm involved in trying to help the city grow in the best way. But there's a problem in -- particularly in the type of work I do as a carpenter, i've seen a lot of people that really aren't very qualified to deal with the architectural standards. The architecture nowadays is not what it was in the 1950's or 1960's. It's not simple, it requires a great deal of craftsmanship, and people -- I guess maybe to make a general statement, some of these guys coming from the rural areas are not really as mathematically inclined as they need to be to be able to do these jobs. You can see from the restoration of this room and this building, it took quite a lot of craftsmanship to do it right, and by that I mean people that have the mathematics skills that are hard working and competent. So what i've seen is construction has become unfortunately often a dumping ground for people that are failed for people like exconvicts, drug users, you name it, they seem to end up in this business. Specifically now I think a lot of our jobs in the Portland area are being taken by people that don't have legal right to be here, usually from other countries. There's probably no issue that americans are uniting behind as much as this particular issue, that we're losing jobs to people that actually don't belong here in the first place. When I worked in seattle from 1998 to 2002, the inns -- the i.n.s. Did do an investigation of various construction sites, and I asked them to do that here. What i'd like the city council to do is make a request of department of homeland security, i.c.e. Division to investigate construction sites to see that all the workers employed there have a legal right to be employed there. I believe that this is a very serious problem, and i've seen it quite often.

Sten: Thank you. We do not have a consent agenda today, as we just have three members. So we'll move directly to the 9:30 time certain. Karla, could you please read item 176.

Item 176.

Sten: Auditor blackmer, are you going to introduce these brave souls?

Gary Blackmer: I'll do a quick introduction, and I think you would enjoy meeting them and having them come up here. We have a nine-member citizen committee who conducts hearings on appeals regarding complaints against the police. They monitor the activities of my office and assess our operations and decisions, they develop policy recommendations for the bureau on various police issues. It entails many, many volunteer hours. We meet every third tuesday of the month for -- from 5:30 until sometimes 9:00 or 9:30&at night, and in addition to those hours, they're coming in and examining case times and so forth, so they're prepared for the hearings. So it's been a huge amount of labor for the citizens, and I think it speaks greatly for the city of Portland that we always get really highly qualified citizens who are interested and committed to step up to this. So each year half of our nine citizens, four in one year, five in the other, their terms are up and they can reapply if they wish to take on the task for some more years, or we put out a large request for

applications throughout the community. This year we have the five citizen positions that are being filled. We have three coming back for another two-year term, and two new applicants who were excited -- who we're excited to have on our community group. So we have lauren erickson, who is returning, theresa keeny, a student at Portland state and very involved in native american community activities, hank miggins returning again, irene, a new applicant, and she's very impressive with her work internationally in various causes, and then bob new land h. Is returning. Our i.p.r. director can't be here, she has a scheduling conflict, but she's very excited as well, so i'd like to invite them up and you can meet them and chat with them if you'd like.

Sten: It's a pleasure to see all of you, particularly eager to serve on this task, because it's not an easy one, but it's an incredibly important one. Why don't we give each of you a chance to introduce yourself and give us as much or as little information as you want. Let's start with bob.

Bob Euland: Bob euland, i've been a previous member of the group. I have -- I felt there were many issues and items that I would like to continue pursuing as we have in the past. I think this organization has done many things to improve the relationship of the citizens and our police bureau, and I think we can continue to work toward that, making sure that citizens are treated courteously and considerately, at the same time that the police officers are able to do their work, which again, we pay them to do. It's a fine line, and i've enjoyed working, and I have some ideas for the future.

Sten: If I could interrupt, I want to introduce, we have a third grade class from laurelhurst who's just come in. Welcome. I thought it would be worthwhile to share with you, these people are citizens who are in charge of looking at issues that arise between citizens and the police. So they will be helping us make sure that the police are doing the very best job they can. So I wanted to welcome the third grade class from laurelhurst and at least let them know what they're watching.

Saltzman: There's an older member of the class who works for the city after school. [laughter] **Sten:** And he can tell you all about the river. Sorry to interrupt. Thank you.

Irene Ogouma: Good morning. I'm Irene ogouma, one of the new members. As you can see, I speak french, but I think i'm doing also very well with the language. So I have done a little bit of work with the united nations in war zone, and to that, because I was a project manager, I was very much interested in the dialogue between law enforcement officer in general, and citizen. So it's something that I really like to work on. And as I take Portland as my new home, my new country, I decided that I would then come up front and get involved with my community. So this, working on this committee will actually allow me to share some of the experiences I have acquired, but also I would bring my unique perspective, blended with the community policing approach of Portland to help the community here. Of course there are some Portland, Oregon, police officers who have worked in my part of the world, west africa, because there is a conflict in liberia. So continuing nah that dialogue, in exchange, I think I will be able to bring something here. There are some issues here, i'm going to get to know them more, but i'm very open and I know that we could do a lot of work to actually support the community of Portland.

Sten: That's wonderful. Thank you.

Theresa Keeney: Good morning. My name is theresa keeney, it is quite an honor to be receiving this appointment. I look very forward to reinforcing that bridge that we are building with the indigenous community. Also, an opportunity to be a role model for our children. Many in our community did not even know that there was such a position available to citizens, and just taking that initiative has caused others to think about their obligation to our community. It will be quite an honor. Thank you.

Hank Miggins: Good morning. Hank miggins, I have a motto, try, try until you succeed. And i'm coming back to try some more. My objective in this next term is to succeed in an effort that i've been pushing for the last three, four years, and that's getting more Portland citizens involved in the activities that we are dealing with relative to community policing and the police officers and the citizens here. So i'm going to make another effort.

Loren Eriksson: My name is loren eriksson, i'm from the southeast area, i'm a returning member. I think bob and the other members have said pretty much how I feel. The only thing i'd say is we are trying to keep a transparency for the public and the police to see both sides.

Sten: Great. Let me open it up to any questions the council may have. No? Thank you very much. It's a great pleasure to have you here. We'll take a roll call and get you duly appointed.

Leonard: This is an outstanding group of people. Lauren is my appointee, and he has not let me down. Did I exactly what I predicted he would do, and he's been a very independent, strong voice for fairness. And so I -- and I happen to be familiar with each of your backgrounds, so i'm really pleased that each of you are going to serve on this committee. It's a testament to the city to have folks such as you serve. Aye.

Saltzman: I want to thank the members who are signing up for another tour of duty, and our new members, very much for taking on this assignment. It's very important to the citizens of our city to know that a group like this citizen review and the independent police review process are available to them when they feel that they need to air their concerns or grievians about their interaction was our police. And it's also very important for our police officers and their supervisors to benefit from your decision making and your rulings. So I appreciate all the work you're going to be -- you have done and those of you who will be doing for us. Thank you. Aye.

Sten: I know some of you and am getting to know some of you, and it's very impressive you're willing to serve. I think this is for me an ongoing issue of continuous improvement. We took out a system, piiac that bob worked with for many years that had its good and bad sides, but needed to be stronger, to be blunt, and i've personally wrestled with how independent do you become versus how much do you collaborate with a police bureau. And I don't know that we've got it perfect, and i'd love to hear, it's time to review this system again before too long, so i'd like as you look at the cases i'd also be interested in your feedback as to how this system is working in general. I come from the theory that the police themselves have to be a key part of the solution because part of it is coming to findings and a very important part of when something was done wrong. It equally important that you create a culture of making sure it doesn't happen again. And I think that's part of why we're trying to have a system in which the police are part of setting up answers to these things as well as making the decision as to what went right and wrong. So I think it's a very challenging task. I personally don't envy you, but i'm very glad you're willing to do it. So of course I vote aye. [gavel pounded] I did realize I made a procedural mistake as your council president, I forgot to call for public testimony. So i'm going to do that now. Thank you very much. Would anybody like to testify on this?

Theresa Teater: Teresa teeter from Oregon city, former member of the ad hoc group here in Portland to get this team of people together a couple years ago. I think you're probably aware of over the weekend we're trying to get our own community review board now out in Oregon city for our county deputies. Oh, boy. The shooting of -- faoud kaady, and the deputy who left his gun laying on the hood, I appreciate your comments about keeping the transparencies -- he stepped out -- between the board and the public open. There was a lot of concern with the ad hoc committee that a lot of our recommendations weren't accepted. When chief foxworth came out with his lethal use of force thing on august 1, this past year, he didn't put in that there would be medics on scene or c.p.r. masks available for officers who use -- to use while waiting for medics arrive, and i'd like the review board to know that still has not been taken care of. Officers were afraid of getting drugs in their mouth, there are masks available that keep that from happening. I'd like the review board do know that. I'm also a member of somewhat member of cop watch in Portland, so we pay attention to everything. I had one unique experience with submitting an internal affairs review thing, witnessing a police officer on a motorcycle during the day after the election protest in front of meier & frank when the officer used his motorcycle to ram into a pedestrian coming across the crosswalk, and nailed the guy's ankle under -- under in and hit him twice and rear ended another police

motorcycle in front of him, and the review board said because -- the i.p.r. said because I didn't have a photograph, I was standing there in shock, can't believing this cop is doing this, and I witnessed the same cop do it the following saturday by the burnside bridge, just hitting a citizen to see what was going on with all the cops on the max line arresting the lady who was trying to get the max trains to move because the protestors were block him. Because I don't have a picture, the police review board up here, the i.p.r. people wouldn't believe this happened. Etc. Etc. As soon as you have a picture they'll believe it. So I don't appreciate as a citizen who hasn't committed any crimes in this town not having my word taken for gold that i'm telling the truth about this. And because this man wasn't part of us, he just left, he was just trying to get across the street, he wasn't even one of the protestors. He just wanted to get home, it was 5:00. And because he never came forward, this has never been substantiated. So I look like an idiot and it took over 10 months to get this process done, and five calls from the woman investigator who couldn't figure out the map I drew on the paper of the whole situation. So I don't feel that your internal affairs division here that investigates these complaints is even effectively paying attention or understanding how to do their jobs. So these folks back here don't have much to work with, you know, on citizens' beliefs. Thank you.

Sten: Thank you very much.

Teater: Good luck to you guys back there.

Sten: Thank you. You're now all appointed. I did not see any other public testimony. Was there anybody else? Oh, sorry. Come on up.

*****: I would just like to --

Sten: Could you sit down? We need you on the microphone. If you could introduce yourself. **Bryce Holt:** Bryce holt, 29-year Portland resident. My question goes to the panel, the board here who so fabusly taken upon themselves to help out in the community. Question is, what part does information dissemination take in your interacting with the community, with the police officers? It's my belief that a lot of the misconceptions, a lot of the times the reason I think people get themselves into trouble in the first place is because they're not aware, they're not aware of the legal ramifications of what it is that they're pursuing with their lives. And this point is pretty much where i'll leave this, because I think you're all intelligent enough to be able to understand what i've just said.

Sten: Thank you very much. Is there any other testimony? Thank you. We'll move to the regular agenda. Karla, please read item 177.

Item 177.

Sten: I believe this is usually a consent agenda item, though we're not having consent agenda. Would anybody like to testify on this matter or make a presentation? If not, roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye 178.

Item 178.

Jeff Baer: Good morning. Members of city council, i'm jeff baer, the director for the bureau of purchases. Before you is a recommendation to award a contract to moore excavation for the downtown water mains improvement project for the bureau of water works. And their bid amount is \$7,982,190, of which they've indicated that they are going to subcontract out \$3 -- 3.65%, just under \$300,000 worth of work to two different minority business enterprise subcontractors. And we have, since that a -- is a fairly low amount we have some agreement between us and moore construction to continue to review the project as it goes forward and look for other additional opportunities where we might be able to boost that number up over the project time. But primarily what they're planning to do is to utilize their own work force for the different divisions of work that we've indicated as potential subcontractor opportunities. So with that i'll turn it over, if you have any questions.

Sten: Questions from the council? Would anybody like to testify on this matter? I think this moves

to second reading.

Moore: It's a report.

Sten: Roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye. [gavel pounded] 178 passes. Please read 179.

Item 179.

Sten: This is a second reading, it's about a fifth reading. We'll make roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: I again want to thank everybody who did a great job on this. Aye. [gavel pounded] 180.

Item 180.

Sten: I don't believe we have a presentation on this one. Would anybody like to testify? Not seeing anyone, this does move to second reading. Item 181.

Item 181.

Sten: Is there any presentation on this one? Would anybody like to testify on item 181? Seeing nobody, 181 moves to second reading. [gavel pounded] please read 182.

Item 182.

Sten: This is a second reading. We'll take a roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye. [gavel pounded] please read item 183.

Item 183.

Sten: This is also a second reading. Roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye. [gavel pounded] item 184, please.

Item 184.

Sten: Another second reading. Roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: I want to thank commissioner Leonard for his work on this. Aye. [gavel pounded] item 185, please.

Item 185.

Sten: Again, second reading. Usually would be on consent. Roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye. [gavel pounded] 185 passes. Thank you to the laurelhurst third grade for coming and best of luck the rest of the day. That moves us to item 186, please.

Item 186.

Sten: This is a report. Is there any presentation? Would anybody like to testify on item 186? Seeing nobody --

*****: It's an intertie.

Moore: Thank you.

Sten: We'll take that from the floor, though usually we don't. Roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye. [gavel pounded] item 187, Karla.

Item 187.

Sten: This is also second reading. Roll call.

Leonard: Aye. Saltzman: Aye.

Sten: Aye. [gavel pounded] with that the council agenda is complete. The council is adjourned until next wednesday at 9:30 as there is no meeting this afternoon.

At 10:14 a.m., Council adjourned.